WAYNESVILLE TOWN OF \_VAYNESVILLE
' "N Plal’lnlng Board Development Services

Director
9 South Main Street Elizabeth Teague
Waynesville, NC 28786
Phone (828) 456-8647 © Fax (828) 452-1492
www.wavnesvillenc.gov

Progress with Vision

Planning Board Members
Susan Teas Smith (Chairman)
Gregory Wheeler {Vice Chair)
Stuart Bass

R. Michael Blackburn

H.P. Dykes, Jr.

Ginger Hain Special Called Meeting
Don McGowan Town Hall, 9 South Main Street, Waynesville, NC 28786
Mary Preyost Wednesday, May 26, 2021 5:30 PM

John Thornton Thomas

A. CALL TO ORDER
1. Welcome/Calendar/Announcements
2. Adoption of Minutes
e April 12,2021 Special Called Meeting as presented (or as amended)
B. BUSINESS

1. Public Hearing to consider amendments to LDS Section 17 Definitions and Section
2.5.3 Permitted Uses Table related to congregate living facilities and emergency
shelters.

2. Public Hearing to consider text amendments to the Land Development Standards

(Appendix A of the Town of Waynesville Code of Ordinances) in compliance with
NCGS 160D:

C. PUBLIC COMMENT/CALL ON THE AUDIENCE

D. ADJOURN

www.waynesvillenc.gov
This institution is an equal opportunity provider



LN

Page 1 of 5
Planning Board
Progress with Vision
9 South Main Street
Waynesville, NC 28786
Phone (828) 456-8647 = Fax (828) 452-1492

Susan Teas Smith (Chairman) Development Services
Gregory Wheeler (Vice) Director

Stuart Bass Elizabeth Teague

Michael Blackburn

HLp. Dkt Jr. MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE PLANNING BOARD

Ginger Hain

Don McGowan Special Called Meeting
Marty Prevost Town Hall — 9 South Main St., Waynesville, NC 28786
Tommy Thomas Apl‘ﬂ 12, 2021

THE WAYNESVILLE PLANNING BOARD held a Special Called Meeting April 12, 2021, at 5:30
p.m. in the Board Room of Town Hall, 9 South Main Street, Waynesville, NC. 28786.

A. CALL TO ORDER

1. Welcome/Calendar/ Announcements

The following members were present:
Susan Teas Smith (Chairman)
Gregory Wheeler (Vice Chairman)
Stuart Bass
Ginger Hain
Marty Prevost
Tommy Thomas

The following Board members were absent:
Bucky Dykes
Michael Blackburn
Don McGowan

The following staff members were present:
Elizabeth Teague, Development Services Director
Byron Hickox, Land Use Administrator
Olga Grooman, Planner
Esther Coulter, Administrative Assistant
Kathy Johnson, Deputy Clerk
Anna Starnes, Attorney

The following media were present: ~ — e -
No media were present

Planning Board Minutes
April 12,2021



3

Page 2 of 5

B. BUSINESS

1. Adoption of Minutes

Chairman Susan Teas Smith called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. and welcomed everyone.

A Motion was made by Board Member Marty Prevost and seconded by Board Member Tommy
Thomas to approve the minutes of the March 15, 2021 board meeting as presented (or amended). The
motion passed unanimously.

2. Site Plan Amendment Review to a Conditional District Plan at 75 Giles Place, PIN 8605-72-
8357.

Development Services Director Elizabeth Teague gave the staff report stating that the Town of
Waynesville adopted a Conditional District Rezoning for Giles Chemical on September 8, 2015. The
Plan had three phases, two of which have been constructed. For Phase three, Giles Chemical would like
to amend their site plan to re-configure a truck bay and to build a smaller warehouse than what was
originally approved.

She explained that the amendment would not add or reduce the property involved, change the design
standard or performance of the original ordinance, or change the land use or vehicular access point.
However, the plan does reduce the square footage of the building originally proposed and the overall
footprint of what is being constructed and reconfigure the parking and truck bay area. While these
changes do not rise to the level of what the LDS 15.15.3 determines as a “substantial change,” the all
conditional district site plans all changes must be reviewed and approved by the Planning Board. Ms.
Teague stated that staff recommends approval of the revised site plan as it does not change the use or
impacts of the site, but improve flow and function of operations for Giles. All other requirements of the
original Conditional District Master Plan, including landscaping and buffer, are still in place.

Patrick Bradshaw with Civil Design Concepts thanked the Board for their time and briefly went over the
plan with the Board. He indicated that over time the needs for the building have changed and that the
re-configuration will reduce the square footage of its footprint.

A motion was made by Board Member Marty Prevost and seconded by Board Member Tommy
Thomas to approve the Site Plan Amendment Review to a Conditional District Plan at 75 Giles
Place, PIN 8605-72-8357. The motion carried unanimously.

3. Continued Discussion of draft definitions and zoning relative to halfway houses and other

congregate care facilities.

Land Use Administrator Byron Hickox presented the staff report, stating that the Aldermen requested
the Planning Board to “study the Town’s schedule of uses to determine if the Board may restrict the

UITID O ONgregd HCI wdy [MOUSCS dard ClLC WILIII a4 geograpiical arc 1o

determine if such facilities may be prohibited from residential and institutional zones.”

Planning Board Minutes
April 12,2021



4

Page 3 of 5

At the September, October, and November 2020 meetings, there was discussion regarding the variety of
needs and the different categories and types of facilities that provide “congregate housing.” The Board
had discussed multiple types of facilities such as those that provide counseling and treatment, residential
services for handicapped persons, requiring licensing from the State of North Carolina, and the need for
emergency, or low-barrier shelters. The Planning Board had also heard a presentation from Mandy
Haithcox of The Pathways Center, who provided an overview of Pathways’ services and the needs that
she sees in the community.

Chair Susan Smith asked about the original directive from the Board of Aldermen. Planning Director
Elizabeth Teague stated that the request was initiated by the Aldermen because of concerns surrounding
two specific situations within the town that have since seen improvements due to better management and
the efforts of code enforcement. She added that while the original reasons for the directive has since
been minimized, the Planning Board has identified important gaps in the LDS regarding these issues.

Mr. Hickox read through the current definitions of relevance in the LDS for Board reference. He also
reviewed the supplemental standards which apply. There was Board discussion about the difference
between a “family care home” which is 6 or fewer residents, and “residential care facilities which is
more than 6 residents. Both are regulated by the State of North Carolina, but only residential care
facilities have supplemental standards. Mr. Hickox went on to explain where these uses are allowed by
zoning district,

Boarding Houses Permitted in 7 residential districts (supplemental standards apply)
Permitted in all 9 Neighborhood Center, Business, and Regional Center Districts

Family Care Homes Permitted in all but 2 districts (supplemental standards apply)

Halfway Houses Permitted only in the 9 Neighborhood Center, Business, and Regional Center
Districts (supplemental standards apply)

Res. Care Facilities Permitted in all but 2 districts
Special Use Permit required in any residential district, use-by-right in all others.

Board members asked about distance requirements to separate facilities. Mr. Hickox noted that the
single supplemental standard for Halfway Houses requires a half-mile separation from another such
use. None of the other three congregate care facilities require any such separation.

Chairman Susan Teas Smith asked which two districts the Family Care Homes were not permitted in.
Mr. Hickox said there is only one district in which they are not permitted and that is the Commercial

and Industry district which doesn’t allow any residential uses.

Mr. Hickox then presented proposed definitions based on previous Planning Board discussions and noted
that the Planning Board had discussed creating three additional use types:

Shelter, Emergency - A facility providing, without charge, temporary sleeping accommodations, with

or without meals, for individuals and/or families displaced from their residences as a result of sudden
natural or man-made catastrophe including, but not limited to, earthquake, fire, flood, tornado, hurricane,

Planning Board Minutes
April 12,2021



§

Page 4 of 5

or the release of hazardous or toxic substance(s) into the environment. Such a natural or man-made
catastrophe must be designated by the responsible local, state, or federal official or an emergency agency
such as The American Red Cross or the Emergency Management Assistance Agency.

Shelter for the Homeless - A facility operating year-round which provides lodging and supportive
services (including, but not limited to, meals, assistance in obtaining permanent housing, medical
counseling, treatment, and/or supervision, psychological counseling, treatment, and/or supervision,
assistance in recuperating from the effects of or refraining from the use of drugs and/or alcohol,
nutritional counseling, employment counseling, job training and placement, and child care) for indigent
individuals and/or families with no regular home or residential address.

Shelter, Temporary - A facility which provides temporary lodging, with or without meals or other
provisions, during times of life-threatening weather conditions for indigent individuals and/or families
with no regular home or residential address.

Mr. Hickox recommends amending the definition of Residential Care Facilities to exclude shelters for
victims of domestic violence per earlier discussion. There was much discussion among the Board
members and Mr. Hickox about the definitions and wording of definitions. It was the consensus of the
Board that the definition would protect the privacy of the domestic violence shelters.

Development Services Director Elizabeth Teague spoke on behalf of Michael Blackburn, stating that he
had called her to let the Board know that he was sorry he could not be at the meeting tonight. He did
share that he felt it was important to establish an emergency shelter definition and that emergency
shelters should be permitted everywhere. He also supported the distinct definition of a homeless or low-
barrier shelter and zoning it for commercial districts so that they are accessible for those in need.

There was Board discussion regarding soup kitchens. Tommy Thompson asked about food trucks and
Mr. Hickox stated that they are permitted separately and must have the permission of the underlying
property owner. The current recommendation is for soup kitchens to be on-premise as allowable uses in
the definition of Religious Institutions. Chair Smith stated that there is an IRS definition for Religious
Institution and Board consensus to follow up with the definition of the Religious Institution and see how
it compares to the IRS definition.

Mr. Hickox stated that the Board should consider whether to add a minimum distance separation to the
supplemental standards for Boarding Houses, Family Care Homes, and/or Residential Care Facilities,
and whether to change the required separation that currently applies to Halfway Houses, and whether to
apply a minimum distance separation to any of the proposed new use types. The consensus of the Board
was to leave it as it is.

Mr. Hickox asked if and how the Table of Permitted Uses should be amended regarding the districts in

which any of the four congregate care facility categories are currently permitted and consider in which

districts the proposed new use types should be permitted. The Board agreed not to change the current

definitions. Mr. Hickox said that what we are now concerned with are the new definitions of Emergency,

Homeless, and Temporary shelters: where these shelters should be permitted and if there are
IPPICTIIETIL d1Tdard O CSTC USC C =

potential landscaping bufters.

Planning Board Minutes
April 12, 2021




Page 5 of 5

Consensus of the Board was that emergency and temporary shelters should be permitted anywhere with
no supplemental standards. Low-barrier shelters for the homeless should be allowed in Neighborhood
Center, Business Districts and Regional Center Districts.

Ms. Teague said the next step is to draft an ordinance based on all the information and bring before the
Board in May with a text amendment which requires two levels of public hearing,

Consistency with the 2035 Comprehensive Land Development Plan
Staff submits that the following goals of the Comprehensive Plan could apply:

Goal 1: Continue to promote smart growth principles in land use planning and zoning.
e Create walkable and attractive neighborhoods and commercial centers.
e Encourage in-fill and context-sensitive development.
e Reinforce the unique character of Waynesville.
Goal 2: Create a Range of housing opportunities and choices.
e Encourage new housing inside Waynesville’s City limits and Extraterritorial jurisdiction.
e Promote a diverse housing stock including market rate, workforce housing, and affordable
options that appeal to a variety of households.
Goal 5: Create opportunities for a sustainable economy.
o  Work with local agencies to address the housing shortage, promote a “living wage,” and
increase Waynesville’s health and wellness resources that serve all ages.

Ms. Teague introduced Ms. Anna Starnes, with Ron Sneed’s office and said Ms. Starnes would be
helping fill in for Mr. Sneed on the Planning Board.

G ADJOURN

With no further business a motion was made by Board Member Marty Prevost and seconded by Board
Member Tommy Thomas, to adjourn the meeting at 6:49 pm. The motion carried unanimously.

Susan Teas Smith, Chairman Kathy Johnson, Deputy Clerk

Planning Board Minutes
April 12,2021



Planning Board Staff Report

Subject: Text Amendment Regarding Halfway Houses, Family Care Homes, and Shelters
Ordinance Section: Section 17.3 Definitions, Use Type; Section 2.5.3 Table of Permitted Uses
Applicant: Board of Aldermen-Initiated

Meeting Date: May 17, 2021

Background:

The Planning Board, acting at the direction of the Board of Aldermen, studied “the Town’s schedule of
uses to determine if the Board may restrict the number of congregate care facilities such as halfway
houses and shelters within a geographical area... (and) determine if such facilities may be prohibited
from residential and institutional zones.”

At the Planning Board meetings in September, October, and November 2020 and April 2021, there was
discussion regarding the variety of needs and the different categories and types of facilities that provide
“congregate housing.” Some types of facilities which provide counseling and treatment, as well as
residential services for handicapped persons, require licensing from the State of North Carolina.

There was also discussion regarding the need for emergency, or low-barrier shelters, and the methods
and constraints that currently apply to religious and nonprofit institutions that try to meet this need.
The Planning Board heard a presentation from Mandy Haithcox of The Pathways Center, who provided
an overview of Pathways’ services and the needs that she sees in the community. Missing from the LDS
are definitions for emergency, temporary, or homeless shelters. Additionally, the term “soup kitchen” is
not defined and is only included as a customary function within the definition of religious institutions,
and there was discussion related to maintaining soup kitchen types of services on the campus/same site
of the managing entity.

After extensive discussion, there was a consensus regarding the addition of new definitions to address
the need for short and long-term shelters, as well as a consensus regarding the appropriate zoning

districts in which these uses should be permitted.

Attached to this staff report is the proposed ordinance that would be submitted to the Board of
Aldermen to amend the text of the Land Development Standards.

Recommendation:

Vote to recommend to the Board of Aldermen the adoption of the proposed ordinance amending the
text of the Land Development Standards Section 2.5.3 and Section 17.3.




ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TEXT OF THE
TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE LAND DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

WHEREAS, the Town of Waynesville has the authority, pursuant to Part 3 of Article 19
of Chapter 160A, now Section III of Chapter 1 of 160D, of the North Carolina General Statutes,
to adopt land development regulations, clarify such regulations, and may amend said regulations
from time to time in the interest of the public health, safety and welfare; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Waynesville Planning Board has reviewed the proposed
amendment to the text of the ordinance and recommends that it is consistent with the 2035
Comprehensive Plan and that it is reasonable and in the public interest, and recommends the text
amendment for its enactment by the Board of Aldermen; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen find this Ordinance is consistent with the Town’s
2035 Comprehensive Plan and that it is reasonable and in the public interest, allowing the
reasonable re-use of pre-existing nonconforming uses and structures, specifically meeting the
Comprehensive Plan goals of;

Goal 1: Continue to promote smart growth principles in land use planning and zoning.
e Encourage in-fill and context-sensitive development.
e Reinforce the unique character of Waynesville.

Goal 2: Create a range of housing opportunities and choices.

e Encourage new housing inside Waynesville’s city limits and Extraterritorial Jurisdiction
(ETD).

e Promote a diverse housing stock including market rate, workforce housing and affordable
options that appeal to a variety of households.

Goal 5: Create opportunities for a sustainable economy.
e Work with local agencies to address the housing shortage, promote a “living wage,” and
increase Waynesville’s medical, health and wellness resources that serve all ages.

and;
WHEREAS, after notice duly given, a public hearing was held on at
the regularly scheduled meeting of the Waynesville Planning Board, and on at

the regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Aldermen;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF
THE TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE, MEETING IN REGULAR SESSION ON
AND WITH A MAJORITY OF THE BOARD MEMBERS VOTING IN THE
AFFIRMATIVE, THE FOLLOWING:

W I BV WA op

as follows (in red-italics):— —




Shelter, Emergency - A facility providing, without charge, temporary sleeping
accommodations, with or without meals, for individuals and/or families displaced from
their residences as a result of sudden natural or man-made catastrophe including, but not
limited to, earthquake, fire, flood, tornado, hurricane, or the release of hazardous or
toxic substance(s) into the environment. Such a natural or man-made catastrophe must
be designated by the responsible local, state, or federal official or an emergency agency
such as The American Red Cross or the Emergency Management Assistance Agency.

Shelter, Homeless - A facility operating year-round which provides lodging and
supportive services (including, but not limited to, meals, assistance in obtaining
permanent housing, medical counseling, treatment, and/or supervision, psychological
counseling, treatment, and/or supervision, assistance in recuperating from the effects of
or refraining from the use of drugs and/or alcohol, nutritional counseling, employment
counseling, job training and placement, and child care) for indigent individuals and/or
families with no regular home or residential address.

Shelter, Temporary - A facility which provides temporary lodging, with or without meals
or other provisions, during times of life-threatening weather conditions for indigent
individuals and/or families with no regular home or residential address.

Soup Kitchen — A facility within a religious institution or shelter that provides free meals
Sfor on-site consumption.

Residential Care Facilities (More Than 6 Residents) A staffed premises (not a single-
family dwelling) with paid or volunteer staff that provides full-time care to more than 6
individuals. Residential care facilities include group homes (NCGS § 131D), nursing
homes (NCGS § 131E-101), residential child-care facilities (NCGS § 131D-10.2),
assisted living residences (NCGS § 131D-2), adult care homes (NCGS § 131D-2),
retirement housing, congregate living services, assisted living services, continuing care
retirement centers, skilled nursing services and orphanages. This term excludes family
care homes, halfway houses, and shelters for victims of domestic violence.

Religious Institution. Any facility such as a church, temple, monastery, synagogues, or
mosque used for worship by a non-profit organization and their customary related uses
for education (pre-schools, religious education, etc.), recreation (gymnasiums, activity
rooms, ball fields, etc.), housing (rectory, parsonage, elderly or disabled housing, etc.)
and accessory uses such as cemeteries, mausoleums, offices, soup kitchens (located only
on the premises of the principal property of the religious institution), and bookstores.

That the Land Development Standards Section 2.5.3 — Table of Permitted Uses, be
amended as follows (in red italics):

Add to the Civic/Institutional use type category:
Shelter, Emergency — Permitted in All Districts — Indicated with a “P”

Shelter, Homeless — Permitted in Neighborhood Center, Business, and Regional
Center Districts only — Indicated with a “P”

Shelter, Temporary — Permitted in All Districts — Indicated with a “P”



ADOPTED this Day of

, 2021,

ATTEST:

Eddie Ward, Town Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

William Cannon, Town Attorney

TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE

J. Gary Caldwell, Mayor

10




e

" WAYNESVILLE Y

Progress with Vision

To: Town of Waynesville Planning Board

From: Elizabeth Teague, Planning Director

Date: May 26, 2021

Subject: Text Amendment Statement of Consistency

Description: Text amendments related to congregate housing and shelters

Address: Town of Waynesville Planning Department (“Development Services
Department)

The Planning Board hereby adopts and recommends to the Governing Board the following statement(s):

D The zoning amendment is approved and is consistent with the Town’s comprehensive land use
plan because:

The zoning amendment and is reasonable and in the public interest because:

D The zoning amendment is rejected because it is inconsistent with the Town’s comprehensive
land plan and is not reasonable and in the public interest because

D In addition to approving this zoning amendment, this approval is also deemed an amendment to
the Town’s comprehensive land use plan. The change in conditions taken into account in
amending the zoning ordinance to meet the development needs of the community and why this
action is reasonable and in the public interest, are as follows:

Planning Board Member , made a motion, seconded by

The motion passed . (unanimously or vote results here)

Susan Teas Smith, Planning Board Chair, Date Esther Coulter, Administrative Assistant, Date




12

Planning Board Staff Report

Subject: Land Development Standards (LDS) text amendments to comply with Chapter
160D

Ordinance Section: Multiple Sections of Land Development Standards

Applicant: Staff initiated Text Amendment; Development Services Department

Meeting Date: May 26, 2021

Background:

Chapter 160D was adopted by the N.C. General Assembly in 2019 to consolidate city and county statutes
and create a unified set of land development regulation statutes among all cities and counties in North
Carolina. Local municipalities need to be in compliance with 160D by July 1%, 2021. The law will be
enacted statewide on August 1%, 2021.

In developing the proposed text amendments, the Development Services Department followed State
Statutes for 160 D and the guidelines and recommendations of the UNC School of Government:

e https://www.ncleg.gov/EnactedLegislation/Statutes/HTML/ByChapter/Chapter 160d.html

e https://www.sog.unc.edu/resources/microsites/planning-and-development-regulation/ch-
160d-2019

e Lovelady, A. and Owens, D. (2020) Chapter 160D: A New Land Use Law for North Carolina,
University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill.

Staff also participated in training and collaborative discussion through the North Carolina Planners’ list
serve and the NC Chapter of the American Planning Association. Legal guidance has been provided by
Ron Sneed and Anna Stearns. Staff presentations on 160D were made on September 21, 2020, April 19,
2021, and the Town adopted Waynesville 2035 Planning with Purpose, Comprehensive Land Use Plan, on
September 8, 2020 after several months of Planning Board review and public hearings.

Staff Recommended Text Changes:

Textamendments include definitions, substitution of 160A references with relevant provisions from 160D,
addition of the conflict of interest standards, updated performance guarantees section, revised permit
terms and process types for different development projects in chapter 15, updated vested rights section,
revised chapter 16 on violations and civil penalties, and replacement of protest petitions section with
public comments to match the language and requirements of 160D.

adoption, with proposed changes to the current Land Development Standards provided in red.




3

Consistency with the 2035 Comprehensive Land Use Plan

160D-related changes are reasonable and in the public interest because they will keep the Town of
Waynesville in compliance with the current General Statutes for land use planning and zoning, and clarify
definitions and procedures which should aid in land use decisions. In so doing, these text amendments
will assist the Town in carrying out the community vision statement of the 2035 Comprehensive Plan:

Waynesville will enable the growth of a vibrant, healthy, and successful community — true to our
history, small town culture and heritage; responsive to the changing aspirations and needs of all
our citizens; purposefully built on the principles of smart growth, mindful of the gift of our rivers
and creeks, farmland and mountain vistas; and attentive to the opportunities presented in regional
preservation, arts and education, economic development, and land use initiatives.

Staff also submits that the proposed text amendments to the LDS are consistent with the first goal of the
2035 Comprehensive Plan:

Goal 1: Continue to promote smart growth principles in land use planning and zoning.
e (Create walkable and attractive neighborhoods and commercial centers.
e Encourage in-fill, mixed use, and context-sensitive development.
e Promote conservation design to preserve important natural resources. (And to)
e Reinforce the unique character of Waynesville.

Attachments

1. Draft Ordinance

2. Consistency Statement Worksheet.

Recommended Motions

1. Motion to find that updates to the Land Development Standards are consistent with the 2035
Comprehensive Land Use Plan.

2. Motion to find that the 160D updates are in the public interest because they are in compliance with
the current law.

2. Motion to recommend staff-initiated LDS text amendment as attached (or as amended) to the Board
of Aldermen.




ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TEXT OF THE
TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE LAND DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

WHEREAS, the Town of Waynesville has the authority, pursuant to Part 3 of Article 19 of
Chapter 160A, now Section III of Chapter 1 of 160D, of the North Carolina General Statutes, to adopt
land development regulations, clarify such regulations, and may amend said regulations from time to time
in the interest of the public health, safety and welfare; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Waynesville must comply with North Carolina General Statutes to
maintain Land Development regulations comply with the most up to date version of State authorization
statutes known as 160D by July 1, 2021.

WHEREAS, the Town of Waynesville Planning Board has reviewed the proposed text
amendments to the Land Development Standards (LDS) and recommends that it is consistent with the
2035 Comprehensive Plan and that it is reasonable and in the public interest because:

e Compliance with 160D will continue to “promote smart growth in land use planning and
zoning;” (Goal #1);

e [t will keep the Town of Waynesville in compliance with General Statutes for land use
planning and zoning,

WHEREAS, the Planning Board has reviewed and recommends the proposed text amendments
for enactment by the Board of Aldermen; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen find this Ordinance is consistent with the Town’s 2035
Comprehensive Plan and that it is reasonable and in the public interest to “make decisions about resources
and land use in accordance with North Carolina General Statutes.” and

WHEREAS, after notice duly given, a public hearing was held on May 26, 2021 at the regularly
scheduled meeting of the Waynesville Planning Board, and on June 8, 2021 at the regularly scheduled
meeting of the Board of Aldermen;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE
TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE, MEETING IN REGULAR SESSION ON JUNE 8, 2021 AND WITH
A MAJORITY OF THE BOARD MEMBERS VOTING IN THE AFFIRMATIVE, THE
FOLLOWING:

That the Land Development Standards be amended as follows in compliance with statutory changes in
N.C.G.S. 160D.




1.

3.

Amend Section 1.2 Authority as follows:

Specifically, principal authorization comes in the North Carolina General Statutes in Chapter 1604

Planning-end Regulation-of Development)- 160D (Local Planning and Development Regulation).

Amend Section 1.5 Consistency with All Adopted Plans as follows:

In accordance with G.S. +66A-382-383 160D, all development plans shall be in conformance with all
adopted plans (...).

Replace Section 2.1.1 and 2.1.2 Official Land Development Map as follows:

2.1.1 Official Land Development Map.

In accordance with 160D-105, the adopted zoning district boundaries and zoning overlays shall be
shown on a map of the Town of Waynesville which shall be known as the Official Land Development
Map, and such map is hereby incorporated into these Land Development Standards for the Town of
Waynesville.

Zoning district maps and a copy of the currently effective version of any incorporated map shall be
maintained for public inspection in the Waynesville Development Services Department.

The Official Land Development Map shall be maintained in the Waynesville Development Services
Department and a copy shall be kept on file with the Town Clerk. Copies of the Official Land
Development Map shall be provided upon request and, when certified by the town clerk in
accordance with G.S. 160A-79 or G.S. 153A-50, shall be admissible into evidence and shall have the
same force and effect as would the original map.

Zoning district boundaries are automatically amended to remain consistent with the incorporated map
upon Board of Aldermen approval of zoning map amendments.



o

2.1.2 Adoption of Other Maps by Reference.

North Carolina flood insurance rate maps, watershed boundary maps, and state surface water maps
officially adopted and promulgated by State and federal agencies are hereby adopted and incorporated
into these Land Development Standards in their most recently adopted version by reference.

The Town of Waynesville Municipal Services District map, Powell Bill Map, Comprehensive
Pedestrian Plan, Parks and Recreation Master Plan, and local and federally designated historic
districts and landmarks are hereby adopted and incorporated into these Land Development Standards
in their most recently adopted version by reference.

Amend Section 2.6.1 Historic Overlay District as follows:

C. Development Standards.

1. Historic Overlay District- General Requirements

b. When the provisions of this section and the guidelines standards and regulations established for
each individual HOD, impose higher standards than are required for that land development
district, the provisions of this section and all the applicable guidelines standards and regulations
shall govern.

Amend Section 2.7 Conditional Districts as follows:

Conditional districts are districts with conditions voluntarily added by the applicant and approved in a
legislative procedure by the Board of Aldermen in accordance with G.S. 168A-382 160D.

Amend Section 5.2.2 Applicability and Administration as follows:

Adopted Plans or Historic Guidelines Standards to Take Precedence.

Where specific architectural elements are required as part of an adopted plan or associated with local
historic guidelines standards, these shall take precedence over the building design requirements of
this chapter.

Amend Section 6.12.2 Types of Guarantees as follows and separate other information into new
Section as 6.12.3:

6.12.1 General.

C. Duration: The duration of the performance guarantee shall initially be one year, unless the

duration. In the case of a bonded obligation, the completion date shall be set one year from the



1%

date the bond is issued, unless the developer determines that the scope of work for the required
improvements necessitates a longer duration (160D-804.1(1a)).

D. Extension. If the improvements are not completed before the guarantee is likely to expire, the
Administrator may extend the performance guarantee, or the developer may provide a new
performance guarantee, for an additional period. An extension under this section shall only be for
a duration necessary to complete the required improvements. If the extension is granted, the
amount of the renewed performance guarantee shall not exceed 125% of the improvements yet to
be completed. The new amount must be reduced for improvements that have already been
completed (160D-804.1(1b)).

6.12.2 Types of Guarantees.

A. Surety Performance Bond:

B. Letter of Credit:

1. The developer may obtain a letter of credit issued by any financial institution licensed to
do business in North Carolina.

2. A satisfactory, irrevocable letter of credit as approved by the town attorney and deposited
with the town clerk shall be submitted, containing the following information:

Indication that the Town is the sole beneficiary,

The amount (of the letter of credit) as approved,

Account number and/or credit number that drafts may be drawn on,
List of improvements that shall be built that the letter is guaranteeing,
Terms in which the town may make drafts on the account,

Expiration date of the letter.

mopo o

B: C. Cash or Equivalent Security:

(.

6.12.3 Relevant Provisions:
C:A. Default by Developer:

()

B:B. Release of Guarantee:

)



E.C. Warranty Against Defects:

(..)

D. Coverage:

The performance guarantee shall be used only for the completion of the required improvements.
It shall not be used for repairs or maintenance after initial completion (160D-804.1(4)). If the
project has common areas that require maintenance, the developer or the entity to which the
property has been officially transferred is responsible for maintaining these common areas.

E. Exclusion:

Performance guarantees associated with erosion control and stormwater control are not subject to
the provisions of this section.

Amend Section 12.3.1 Statutory Authorizations, Findings of Fact, Purpose and Objectives as follows:

The Legislature of the State of North Carolina has in Part 6, Article 21 of Chapter 143; Parts-3:5and
SofArticle 10-of Chapter 160A; Articles 7, 9, 11, and 13 of Chapter 160D and the Article 8 of

Chapter 160A of the North Carolina General Statutes, delegated to local governmental units the
responsibility to adopt regulations (...).

Amend Section 14.3.2 Planning Board Membership and Quorum as follows:

(...) one 1 or more members shall be appointed by the Haywood County Commissioners as set forth
in G5—160A362 (G.S. 160D-307 to provide for proportional representation of residents within the
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction.

Amend Section 14.4.2 Board of Adjustment Membership and Quorum as follows:

The Board shall not pass upon any decision relating to an appeal from a decision, order, requirement,
or determination of town officials or an application for a variance or eenditional-use-permit special
use permit when there are less than four-fifths ( 4/5 ) of the board members with jurisdictional
authority present.

Amend Section 14.5.1 Historic Preservation Powers and Duties as follows:

The Historic Preservation Commission of Waynesville shall have the following powers and duties to

be carried out in accordance with the terms of this ordinance of G-S—Chapter 160AArtiele19; Part
3C G.S. Chapter 160D, Article 9, Part 4 (...).

Insert new section to 14.6 Meetings and General Procedures:

1%

14.6.7 Conflict of Interest Policy.



. Governing Board. - A governing board member shall not vote on any legislative decision regarding
a development regulation adopted pursuant to this Chapter where the outcome of the matter being
considered is reasonably likely to have a direct, substantial, and readily identifiable financial impact
on the member. A governing board member shall not vote on any zoning amendment if the
landowner of the property subject to a rezoning petition or the applicant for a text amendment is a
person with whom the member has a close familial, business, or other associational relationship.

Appointed Boards. - Members of appointed boards shall not vote on any advisory or legislative
decision regarding a development regulation adopted pursuant to this Chapter where the outcome
of the matter being considered is reasonably likely to have a direct, substantial, and readily
identifiable financial impact on the member. An appointed board member shall not vote on any
zoning amendment if the landowner of the property subject to a rezoning petition or the applicant
for a text amendment is a person with whom the member has a close familial, business, or other
associational relationship.

Administrative Staff. - No staff member shall make a final decision on an administrative decision
required by this Chapter if the outcome of that decision would have a direct, substantial, and readily
identifiable financial impact on the staff member or if the applicant or other person subject to that
decision is a person with whom the staff member has a close familial, business, or other
associational relationship. If a staff member has a conflict of interest under this section, the decision
shall be assigned to the supervisor of the staff person or such other staff person as may be designated
by the development regulation or other ordinance.

. No staff member shall be financially interested or employed by a business that is financially
interested in a development subject to regulation under this Chapter unless the staff member is the
owner of the land or building involved. No staff member or other individual or an employee of a
company contracting with a local government to provide staff support shall engage in any work
that is inconsistent with his or her duties or with the interest of the local government, as determined
by the local government.

Quasi-Judicial Decisions. - A member of any board exercising quasi-judicial functions pursuant to
this Chapter shall not participate in or vote on any quasi-judicial matter in a manner that would
violate affected persons' constitutional rights to an impartial decision maker. Impermissible
violations of due process include, but are not limited to, a member having a fixed opinion prior to
hearing the matter that is not susceptible to change, undisclosed ex parte communications, a close
familial, business, or other associational relationship with an affected person, or a financial interest
in the outcome of the matter.

Resolution of Objection. - If an objection is raised to a board member's participation at or prior to
the hearing or vote on a particular matter and that member does not recuse himself or herself, the
remaining members of the board shall by majority vote rule on the objection.

. Familial Relationship. - For purposes of this section, a "close familial relationship" means a spouse,
parent, child, brother, sister, grandparent, or grandchild. The term includes the step, half, and in-
law relationships. (2019-111,s.2.4.)

19

10. Amend Section 15.2.3 as follows:




15.2.3 Permit/Process Type

20

Permit/ Process Type | Section Permit/Process | Reviewing Public Approving | Appeal Permit Permit
: Type Agency Notification | Agency Process Period Extension
(15.3)
Certificate of LDS 15.6.1 &-months Sy
Compliance Administrative Admin. None Admin. BOA 12 months Re-submit
Temporary Use 15.6.2 See 47 n/a
Permit Administrative Admin. None Admin. BOA 4.6
Certificate of 15.6.3 n/a n/a
Occupancy Administrative Admin. None Admin, BOA
Modification of 15.6.4 n/a n/a
Dimensional Administrative Admin. None Admin. BOA
Standards
Grading Permit 15.7.1 Gfredhn Re-submit
Administrative Admin. None Admin. BOA 12 months
Floodplain 15.7.2 Iyear Re-submit
Development Permit Administrative Admin. None Admin. BOA 12 months
Stormwater Permit 15.7.3 year Re-submit
Administrative Admin. None Admin. BOA 12 months
Site Plan/Design 15.8.1 ey Fvear
Review (Minor) Administrative Admin. None Admin. BOA 2 years Upto3
' years max.*
Site Plan/Design 15.8.2 s tipdbiin] Admin. 1,24 Planning Superior Aepons e
Review (Major) Administrative Board Court 2 years Upto3
years max. *
Subdivision (Minor) 15.9.1 30 days to Re-submit
Administrative Admin. None Admin. BOA Sup | file plat
erior
Court**
Subdivision (Major) See 15.9.2, 15.9.3, and 15.9.4
Subdivision (Major)- | 15.9.3 BOA Sup | ‘rearto-final
Preliminary Plat Administrative Admin. Nene-1,2,4 Planning erior plat G-menths
Board Court** 2 years to Upto3
Sidmiie final plat years max.*
Subdivision (Major)- | 15.9.4 BOASup | 30daysto | Re-submit
Final Plat Administrative Admin. None Admin. erior file plat
Court**
Special Use Permit 15.10 Quasi-Judicial | Planning 1,2:5 Planning | Superior | +ear 1year
' Board Board Court 2 years Upto3
years max.*
Designation of 15.11.1 Legislative HPC 1,2,3 Board of Superior | n/a n/a
Historic Aldermen | Court
Landmarks/Districts
Certificate of 15.11.2 6-menths
Appropriateness Administrative Admin. None Admin. HPC 12 months Re-submit
(Minor)
Certificate of 15.11.3 Quasi-Judicial | Admin. 1,2,4 HPC BOA 6-months
Appropriateness 12 months Re-submit
(Major)
Appeal of 15.12 Quasi-Judicial | BOA 1.4 BOA Superior | 30 days to n/a
Administrative Court Appeal

Decision




Al

Variance 15.13 Quasi-Judicial | BOA 1,4 BOA Superior | 30 days to n/a
Court Appeal
Text Amendment | 15.14 Legislative Planning 1,234 Board of Superior | n/a n/a
: Board Aldermen | Court
Map Amendment | 15.14 Legislative Planning 1,2,34 Board of | Superior | n/a n/a
(Rezoning) Board Aldermen | Court
Conditional District | 15.15 Legislative Planning 1,2,5 Board of | Superior | May-be n/a
| Board Aldermen | Court reseinded Upto3
after 2 years | years max.*
; | 2 years
B Addermen yeasstotal

* See Section 15.16.3
** 160D-1403(b)

11.

12.

13.

Amend Section 15.5 General Requirements for Quasi-Judicial Hearings and Decisions as follows:

15.5- General Requirements for QuasiJudieial Evidentiary Hearings and Quasi-Judicial Decisions.

A quasi-judicial decision is a preeess-that-invelves decision involving the finding of facts regarding a
specific application of an ordinance and that requires the exercise of discretion when applying the
standards of the ordinance. Quasi-judicial decisions include, but are not limited to, decisions
involving variances, special use permits, certificates of appropriateness, and appeals of administrative
determinations. In accordance with G.S.+60A-393-160D-1-2, -1402, decisions on the approval of site
plans and subdivisions ard are quasi-judicial in nature if the ordinance authorizes (...).

Amend Section 15.5.1 Standards of Conduct as follows:

Standards for Conduct of Quasijudieial Evidentiary Hearings.

An evidentiary hearing is a hearing to gather competent, material, and substantial evidence in order to
make findings for a quasi-judicial decision required by an ordinance.

C. (...) All decisions shall be based on competent, material, and substantial evidence entered in as
part of the record.

Amend Section 15.6.1 Certificates of Land Development Standards (LDS) Compliance as follows:

G. Permit Validity: Upon the approval of the Certificate of Land Development Standards
Compliance, the applicant shall have six-{6)-+enths one (1) year to obtain a building permit or
otherwise begin the permitted use.

At

- Renewal of an
No further

plication procedure as the initial permit.




14.

I8

16.

17,

22

Amend Section 15.7.1 Grading Permit (Sedimentation and Erosion Control) as follows:

H. Permit Validity: When work under a grading permit is not eempleted-substantially commenced
within six+{6)}menths one (1) year following the date of issuance of the grading permit, the grading
permit shall be deemed expired.

Amend Section 15.7.3 Stormwater Permits as follows:

G. Permit Validity: When a stormwater permit is issued in association with a project requiring a
building permit, the stormwater permit shall expire upon the expiration or revocation of the building
permit. When a stormwater permit is issued for a project that does not require a building permit, the
stormwater permit shall expire if work is not initiated within twelve (12) months of the date of

issuance of the permit. erif- work-stops-fora-twelve (12 - month-period:

Amend Section 15.8.1 Site Plan/Design Review (Minor) as follows:

H. Permit Validity: Upon the approval of the Minor Site Plan, the applicant shall have ene{H-year
two (2) years to obtain a building permit.

16OD 108 l(e)(2) the Adrmmstrator may prowde an extension for a perlod exceedmg two (2) years
but not exceeding five (5) years where warranted in light of all relevant circumstances, including, but
not limited to: the size and phasing of development, the level of investment, the need for the
development, economic cycles, and market conditions or other considerations. These determinations
are in the sound discretion of the Administrator and shall be made following the same application
procedure as the initial approval. No further development activity shall be performed until the
extension approval is issued.

Amend Section 15.8.2 Site Plan/Design Review (Major) as follows:

B. Process Types: Quasi-judieial-(see-alse15-4) Administrative

36. Decisions/Findings of Fact: Following the public hearing the eemmission Planning Board
may approve, deny or approve with conditions the application for a Major Site Plan. No
Major Site Plan shall be granted approved unless the eemmissien Planning Board finds each
of iteomphieswith the following findinss-ef facts to be true:

1. The plan is consistent with the adopted plans and policies of the Town;
2. The plan comphes w1th all apphcable requ1rements of thlS ordmance and




23

J. Review Period by Cemmissien-Planning Board: Applications for Major Site Plans shall be
acted upon within ninety (90) days after filing, otherwise the application shall be deemed approved
and a permit shall be issued. An extension of time may be granted by mutual consent of the
ecommission Planning Board and the applicant.

L. Permit Validity: Upon the approval of the Major Site Plan, the applicant shall have ene-year two
(2) years to obtain a building permit.

eemp%mﬂee—aﬁd—af&s&b&eqeeﬁt—bmkhﬂg—pelmﬂs—Pmsuant to 160D 108 1(e)(2) the Adrmmstrator

may provide an extension for a period exceeding two (2) years but not exceeding five (5) years
where warranted in light of all relevant circumstances, including, but not limited to, the size and
phasing of development, the level of investment, the need for the development, economic cycles,
and market conditions or other considerations. These determinations are in the sound discretion of
the Administrator and shall be made following the same application procedure as the initial
approval. No further development activity shall be performed until the new approval is issued.

18. Amend Section 15.9.1 Minor Subdivisions as follows:

F. Appeals. Notwithstanding the provisions of section 15.12.2 below, when an applicant disagrees with
Appeals-ofthe decisions of the Administrator, the applicant may, within thirty (30) days after the receipt
of the decision in writing, request that the application be forwarded to the Planning Board for
determination at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board. The request must be rnade in
writing and delivered to the Town Clerk.-shall-be M

seetion15-42- Appeals of the decision of the Planmng Board shall be made to the Supenor Court of
Haywood County. Such an appeal must be made in writing within thirty (30) days of the receipt of the
decision by the property owner.

I. The minor subdivision process is not intended to permit the avoidance of improvements,
infrastructure or other standards imposed for major subdivisions. Therefore, when an application for
minor subdivision approval is made by an applicant who has previously obtained minor subdivision
approval for an adjacent parcel of land in the previous two years, the application shall be treated as an
application for, and conform to the requirements of, a major subdivision set forth below.

19. Amend Section 15.9.2 Major Subdivisions as follows:

The miner-major subdivision review process is required for those divisions of land into eight (8) or more

lots or which require dedication of public utilities and/or public streets.



24

A. Process Types: Quasijudicia{See-also15-4)-Administrative

B. Pre-Application Procedure: It is required that every applicant for a Major Subdivision meet
with the Administrator in a conference prior to the submittal of an application. The purpose of
this conference is to provide clarification and assistance in the preparation and submission of
plats for approval. It is recommended that the applicant provide a sketch plan (15.4.2) and
Environmental survey (15.4.1) to the Administrator prior to or at the pre-application conference.
The provision of a sketch plan will allow the Administrator an opportunity to review the proposal
before the applicant expends funds on the preparation of a detailed Subdivision Plan.

C. Required Application Information: Environmental Survey (15.4.1) and Preliminary Plat.




25

C. Preliminary Plat Approval: The Planning Board shall review and either approve or deny the
major subdivision applicant’s preliminary plat in accordance with the procedure set forth in
section 15.9.3 below. Engineering, including a compliant Stormwater Plan (12.5) and
Construction Documents (15.4.4) shall be submitted after Planning Board review.

D. Final Plat: Once all infrastructure improvements are installed or financially guaranteed as

required by Section 6.13 below, the Final Plat shall be presented for approval in accordance with
Section 15.9.4 below.

20. Amend Section 15.9.3 Preliminary Plat as follows:

15.9.3. Preliminary Plats for Major Subdivision:

A. Process Types: Administrative.

B. Permit Required Before Any Land-Disturbing Activity: No saeh-land-disturbing activity
shall take place until a Preliminary Plat has been approved.

B-C. Required Application Information: Environmental Survey (15.4.1) and Preliminary Plat
(15.4.4) prepared by a registered land surveyor, licensed landscape architect or licensed engineer.

D. Determination of Completeness: The Administrator shall review the application to ensure
that it is complete, prepare a report and recommendation on the application, and schedule the
matter for a public hearing before the Planning Board.

E. Public Notification: Level 1, 2 and 4.



2

F. Neighborhood Meeting (15.3.7): Optional.

G. Public Hearing: The Planning Board shall hold a hearing on the proposal. The applicant and
other property owners likely to be materially affected by the application shall be given an
opportunity to be heard.

H. Decisions/Findings of Fact: Following the public hearing the board may approve, deny or
approve with conditions the application for a Major Subdivision. No Major Subdivision shall be
approved unless the commission finds each of the following facts to be true:

1. The plan is consistent with the adopted plans and policies of the Town;
2. The plan complies with all applicable requirements of this ordinance; and
3. The plan has infrastructure as required by the ordinance to support the plan as proposed.

. Substantial Changes: Substantial Changes from the approved majersubdivisionplan
preliminary plat shall require additional review by the Planmng Board. Substantial changes shall
include, but-net-be-timited-+te redesign of streets, increasing the number of lots, altering the design
of more than twenty (20) percent of the lots, and/or reducing the number of lots by twenty (20)
percent. All other changes shall be considered minor modifications subject to review by the
Administrator.,

H:J. Appeals. Co
Adﬁsﬂaaeﬂkﬂﬁeeeféaﬂee—w%h—seeﬁe&ié—i-z—m appeal of the dec1310n to approve or deny a
Preliminary Plat or a substantial change to an approved Preliminary Plat may be made by an
aggrieved party to the Superior Court of Haywood County no later than thirty (30) days after the
applicant receives the written copy of the decision.

K. Permit Validity: Unless substantial work has commenced or a building permit has been
obtained, approval of a preliminary plat expires two (2) years from the date such approval was
granted.

L. Permit Extension: The applicant may apply for an extension of the approval period. The
Planning Board may approve an extension of the time required to file the final plat up to a total of
five (5) years from the date the initial application was approved where warranted in light of all
relevant circumstances, including, but not limited to, the size and phasing of development, the
level of investment, the need for the development, economic cycles, and market conditions or
other considerations. No further development activity shall be performed until the new approval
is issued.

21. Amend Section 15.9.4 Final Plats as follows:

15.9.4, Final Plat for Major Subdivision:

ol

G. Appeals: Appea
Adj&stmeﬁt—m—&eeefé&ﬂee—kﬁth—Seet-teﬁ—lé—H}_An appeal of the demsmn to approve or deny a
Final Plat or to approve or deny a substantial change to an approved Preliminary Plat may be
made by an aggrieved party to the Superior Court of Haywood County no later than thirty (30)
days after the applicant receives the written copy of the decision.




PR,

J. Permit Validity: Final plats for major subdivisions thathave beengranted-approval-must be

recorded within thirty (30) days following approval or the approval becomes invalid. No lots shall
be sold prior to approval by the town and recording of the Final Plat for the subdivision.

K. Permit Extension:

22. Amend Section 15.10.3 Effect of Decisions as follows:

B. Permit Validity: 6-menths-two (2) years to obtain building permit. Such permit shall remain
valid as long as a valid building permit exists for the project.

C. Permit Extension: 6-menths—one-time-only-The applicant may apply for an extension of the
approval period. The Planning Board may approve an extension of the time required to file the final

plat up to a total of five (5) years from the date the initial application was approved where warranted
in light of all relevant circumstances, including, but not limited to, the size and phasing of
development, the level of investment, the need for the development, economic cycles, and market
conditions or other considerations. No further development activity shall be performed until the new
approval is issued.

23. Amend Section 15.11.2 Certification of Appropriateness — Minor Works for Local Landmarks and
Local Historic Districts as follows:

A. Applicability: Minor works are those exterior changes that do not involve substantial alterations,
additions or removals that could impair the integrity of the local landmark property and/or locally
designated historic district as a whole.

E. Once an application containing all needed elements is submitted, the Administrator shall review
the application and approve or deny it based on compliance with the standards contained in this
chapter and in any applicable Design Review Guidelines or other standards that may apply.

[.  Permit Validity: 6-menths-one (1) year.

J.  Permit Extension: Nene—must Re-submit,

24 Amend Section 15.11.3 Certification of Appropriateness — Major Works for Local Landmarks and
Local Historic Districts as follows:

B. (...) This advice shall be on the commission’s Design Review Guidelines or other standards that
may apply, the nature of the area where the proposed project will take place, and other relevant
factors.




29

F. (...) No Certificate of Appropriateness shall be granted unless the commission finds that the
application complies with the principles of the Design Review Guidelines adopted by the
commission for review of changes and new construction.

I. Delay in Demolition of Local Landmarks and Buildings within Local Historic Districts: An
application for a certificate of appropriateness authorizing the demolition, removal or destruction
of a designated local landmark or a building, structure or site within a local historic district may
not be denied except as provided below:

= L. Permit Validity: 6-menths-one (1) year.

I M. Permit Extension: Nere—must Re-submit.

25. Amend Section 15.12.1 Applicability as follows:

This process is hereby established to provide an appeal process for parties aggrieved by any order,
requirement, decision or determination, other than the decision to approve or deny a minor subdivision
plat, made by an administrative officer charged with enforcing the provisions of this ordinance. For
appeals of decisions regarding minor subdivision plats, see 15.9.1(F).

37. Amend Section 15.13.3 Formal Review as follows:

A. Action by the Board of Adjustment:

1. Upon receipt of the request for a variance from the Administrator, the board of adjustment
shall hold a-quasi-judieial an evidentiary hearing on the request.

38. Amend Section 15.14.2 Review by Planning Board as follows:

B. Additional Public Notification for Large Scale Amendments: (...) When this occurs, the town
may use the expanded published notice provisions found in the North Carolina General Statutes at
Section +60A384 160D-601.

39. Replace Section 15.14.3 Protest Petitions as follows:




40.

41.

42,

15.14.3. Public Comment

Zoning regulations may from time to time be amended, supplemented, changed, modified, or
repealed. If any resident or property owner in the local government submits a written statement
regarding a proposed amendment, modification, or repeal to a zoning regulation, including a text
or map amendment that has been properly initiated as provided in G.S. 160D-601, to the clerk to
the board at least two business days prior to the proposed vote on such change, the clerk to the
board shall deliver such written statement to the governing board. If the proposed change is the
subject of a quasi-judicial proceeding under G.S. 160D-705 or any other statute, the clerk shall
provide only the names and addresses of the individuals providing written comment, and the
provision of such names and addresses to all members of the board shall not disqualify any member
of the board from voting (160D-603).

Amend Section 15.14.4 Consideration by the Board of Aldermen as follows:

B. Additional Public Notification for Large Scale Amendments: (...) When this occurs, the
town may use the expanded published notice provisions found in the North Carolina General
Statutes at Section +60A-—384 160D-601.

Amend Section 15.14.5 Plan Consistency as follows:

In accordance with G.S.4-60A-383 160D-604(d); -605(a); -701, all such amendments shall be
made in accordance with the Comprehensive Land Bevelepment- Use Plan and any other
officially adopted development plan.

Amend Section 15.15 Conditional Districts as follows:

Conditional Districts (Section 2.6) are districts with conditions voluntarily added by the applicant and
approved in a legislative procedure by the Board of Aldermen in accordance with G.S. 160A-382
160D.

43.

Amend Section 15.15.2 Formal Review as follows:




r4-

D. The applicant will have a reasonable opportunity to consider and respond to any conditions and
site-specific standards proposed by either the Planning Board or the Board of Aldermen prior to

final action. In accordance with G.S. +66A-382(b) 160D.

44. Replace Section 15.16 Vested Right as follows:
15:16- Sested Risht,

L4 ol
U XpPpToOYHG



4l

15.16 Permit Choice and Vested Rights.

15.16.1 Permit Choice.

A. If an applicant submits a complete application for a development permit or approval and a
development regulation changes between the time the application was submitted and a decision is
made, the applicant may choose whether the application will be judged under the previously
existing or modified rule (160D-108(b)).

B. When a development requires the issuance of multiple permits, the applicant may, for a period of
up to 18 months, choose for each permit whether to proceed under the rule that existed at the time
of application for the initial permit or under a modified rule.

C. For the purposes of this subsection, an erosion and sedimentation control permit or a sign permit
do not count as an initial application for a development permit.

15.16.2 Vested Rights: Generally.

A. Pursuant to NC G.S. 160D-108, a zoning vested right is the right to undertake and complete the
development and use of property as it was approved despite a subsequent change in applicable
regulation. If the development regulation changes after the application has been approved, the
project may continue under the old rule as initially approved.

B. A statutory vested right is established when:

1. A site-specific vesting plan is approved; or



32

2. A final plat is approved for the initial phase of a multi-phase development; or
3. A development agreement is approved pursuant to NC G.S. Chapter 160D, Article 10; or
4. When a development permit has been issued for all other types of development.

15.16.3 Vested Right Terms.

A. Duration:

TypeofPermlt/nght : } G dlerm ik
e m—
Development Approval 12 months

Site-Specific Vesting Plan 2-5 years

Multi-Phase Development 7 years from first site plan approval

Development agreement Per agreement negotiated pursuant to NCGS 160D, Article 10

Development discontinuation 2 years

A vested right for a site-specific vesting plan remains vested for a period of 2 years from the date of
the first development approval or permit issued for the site. Pursuant to 160D-108.1(e)(2), the
Administrator may provide an extension for a period exceeding two (2) years but not exceeding five
(5) years where warranted in light of all relevant circumstances, including, but not limited to, the size
and phasing of development, the level of investment, the need for the development, economic cycles,
and market conditions or other considerations. These determinations are in the sound discretion of the
Administrator and shall be made following the same application procedure as the initial approval.

B. A development permit or approval expires and the vested rights terminate at the time specified in
subsection A, unless the work authorized by the permit has substantially commenced. For the
purpose of this section, the substantial commencement of work shall be determined by the
Administrator based on any of the following:

1. The development has received and maintained a valid erosion and sedimentation
control permit and conducted grading activity on a continuous basis that has not been
discontinued for longer than 30 days; or

2. The development has created substantial on-site infrastructure; or

3. The development has received and maintained a valid building permit.

C. Pursuant to NC G.S. 160D-108, even if work has substantially commenced, a development
approval still expires if development work is intentionally and voluntarily discontinued for a

period of not less than 24 consecutive months.



32

15.16.4 Definitions:
For the purpose of this section, the following definitions apply:

A. Development- as defined in Section 17.4 of this ordinance

B. Development permit- an administrative or quasi-judicial approval that is written and that is
required prior to commencing development or undertaking a specific activity, project, or
development proposal, including any of the following:

Zoning permits.

Site plan approvals.

Special use permits.

Variances.

Certificates of appropriateness.

Plat approvals.

Development agreements.

Building permits.

Subdivision of land.

10. State agency permits for development.

11. Driveway permits.

12. Erosion and sedimentation control permits (NC G.S. 143-755(e)(1)).

0 PNAU W

C. Multi-phase development- a development containing 25 acres or more that is both of the
following:
1. Submitted for development permit approval to occur in more than one phase
2. Subject to a master development plan with committed elements showing the type and
intensity of use of each phase (NC G.S. 160D-108(j)).

D. Site-specific vesting plans- for the purposes of this chapter, the following types of
development approvals are site-specific vested plans:
1. Any development for which a special use permit is required;
2. Major subdivisions;
3. Major and minor site plans;
4. Conditional zoning.

15.16.6. Relevant provisions:

A. Run with the Property: A zoning vested right is not a personal right but shall attach to and run
with the applicable property. All successors to the original landowner may exercise such right
under the same conditions and for the same time that the original applicant could have exercised
such right.

B. Town May Terminate Vested Rights Early: The town may terminate the zoning vested rights
upon payment to the affected landowner of compensation for all costs, expenses and other losses
incurred by the landowner, including, but not limited to, all fees paid in consideration of all
financing and all architectural, legal and other fees incurred after approval by the town.

C. Not Exclusive: Nothing in this section shall prohibit the revocation of the original approval or
other remedies for failure to comply with applicable terms and conditions of the approval or this
chapter.

D. Hazard: The town may terminate the zoning vested right if it determines after a public hearing

that natural or man-made hazards are on or in the immediate vicinity of the property, and if not
corrected, these hazards would pose a serious threat to the public health, safety, and welfare.



3y

E. State or Federal Regulation Not Bound by Vested Right: The zoning vested right may be
terminated upon the enactment or promulgation of a state or federal law or regulation that
precludes development as contemplated in the site-specific vesting plan. In such a case the Board
of Aldermen may, by ordinance, after notice and a hearing, modify the affected provisions upon a
finding that the change in state or federal law has a fundamental effect on the plan.

45. Amend Section 16.1.2 Notice of Violation as follows:

A. Whenever the Administrator has reasonable cause to believe that a person is violating any of the
provisions of this ordinance or any plan, order, or condition issued pursuant to this chapter, that

official shall immediately notify that-persen-efthevielationseach of the following, as applicable:
1. the holder of any development approval for the property;

2. the landowner; and

3. the person undertaking the work or activity that is the cause of the violation.

The notice of violation shall be delivered by personal delivery, electronic delivery, or first-class
mail. The notice of violation may also be posted on the property.

35. Delete Section 16.2.3 Criminal Penalties and renumber subsequent Sections:

36. Add the following to Section 17.3 Definitions, Use Type:

Dwelling- any building, structure, manufactured home, or mobile home, or part thereof, used and
occupied for human habitation or intended to be so used, and includes any outhouses and
appurtenances belonging thereto or usually enjoyed therewith.

Dwelling- Accessory. A smaller, secondary dwelling unit either detached or attached, such as a

garage apartment or cottage, designed for occupancy by one or two persons aet-exeeeding750-square
feet-of grossHoerspace and located on a lot with an existing single-family dwelling. Said units shall

not exceed one per lot.

37. Amend and add to Section 17.4 Definitions, General as follows:

Building. ; ' =T
structure with a roof and walls built for permanent use. When used in reference toa r681dent1a1
structure, any one- or two-family dwelling or portion thereof, including townhouses, that is used, or
designed or intended to be used for habitation for living, sleeping, cooking, or eating purposes or any

combination thereof, including accessory structures (NC Building Code: Residential Code Sec 202)



38.

25

Administrative decision. A decision made in the implementation, administration, or enforcement of
development regulations that involve the determination of facts and the application of objective
standards set forth in Chapter 160D of the NC G.S. and the Town of Waynesville Code of

Ordinances.

Quasi-judicial decision. A decision involving the finding of facts regarding a specific application of
an ordinance and that requires the exercise of discretion when applying the standards of the
ordinance. The term includes, but is not limited to decisions involving variances, special use permits,
or certificates of appropriateness. (160D-102(28)).

Legislative decision. The adoption, amendment, or repeal of a regulation under NC G.S. Chapter
160D or Town of Waynesville Code of Ordinances. The term also includes the decision to approve,
amend, or rescind a development agreement consistent with the provisions of Article 10 of the NC
G.S. 160D.

Development Any man—made change to 1mpr0ved or ummproved real estate, mcludmg, but not
llmlted to: by : e5—F : 5 g : : :

a. The construction, erection, alteration, enlargement, renovation, substantial repair, movement
to another site, or demolition of any structure.

b. The clearing, excavation, dredging, grading, filling, paving, drilling operations, mining, or

alteration of land.

Storage of equipment or materials.

The subdivision of land as defined in this ordinance.

e. The initiation of substantial change in the use of land or the intensity of use of land.

oo

For stormwater calculation, development shall be considered any land disturbing activity that
increases the amount of built upon area or otherwise decreases the infiltration of precipitation into the
soil.

Amend Section 17.5 Definitions, Flood Damage Prevention as follows:

Development Any man—made change to unproved or ummproved real estate, mcludmg, but not
Iimlted to: by = dreds : ! catior

a. The construction, erection, alteration, enlargement, renovation, substantial repair, movement
to another site, or demolition of any structure.

b. The clearing, excavation, dredging, grading, filling, paving, drilling operations, mining, or
alteration of land.

¢. Storage of equipment or materials.

d. The subdivision of land as defined in this ordinance.

e. The initiation of substantial change in the use of land or the intensity of use of land.

For stormwater calculation, development shall be considered any land disturbing activity that
increases the amount of built upon area or otherwise decreases the infiltration of precipitation into the

g0l

oo



ADOPTED this 8th Day of June, 2021.

ATTEST:

Eddie Ward, Town Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

William Cannon, Town Attorney

TOWN OF WAYNESVILLE

J. Gary Caldwell, Mayor

36




27

To: Town of Waynesville Planning Board

From: Elizabeth Teague, Planning Director

Date: May 26, 2021

Subject: Text Amendment Statement of Consistency

Description: Text amendments related to 160D compliance

Address: Town of Waynesville Planning Department (“Development Services
Department)

The Planning Board hereby adopts and recommends to the Governing Board the following statement(s):

D The zoning amendment is approved and is consistent with the Town’s comprehensive land use
plan because:

The zoning amendment and is reasonable and in the public interest because:

I:I The zoning amendment is rejected because it is inconsistent with the Town’s comprehensive
land plan and is not reasonable and in the public interest because

D In addition to approving this zoning amendment, this approval is also deemed an amendment to
the Town’s comprehensive land use plan. The change in conditions taken into account in
amending the zoning ordinance to meet the development needs of the community and why this
action is reasonable and in the public interest, are as follows:

Planning Board Member , made a motion, seconded by

The motion passed . (unanimously or vote results here)

Susan Teas Smith, Planning Board Chair, Date Esther Coulter, Administrative Assistant, Date




